# APPENDICES

# **Appendix 1.** List of the Principal Archive Sources for St Peter's Church Warwick Rodwell<sup>1</sup>

## Bodleian Library, Oxford

Nineteenth-century scrapbook of notes, sketches and documents on Barton and other parishes in the locality, amassed by H.W. Ball in connection with writing his history of the town (Ms. Top. Lincs. b.1).

## British Library, London

The Buckler Collection of architectural drawings includes material on St Peter's church (Add. Ms. 36,438). J.T. Micklethwaite's ecclesiological collections contains notes, cuttings, photographs and plans of St Peter's (Add. Ms. 37,508; 37,510). A few other photographs and ephemeral items (Add. Ms. 37,598). Early records of stained glass (Harl. Ms. 6829).

# College of Arms, London

Early records of stained glass and heraldry (Ms. H.XI.C.N).

# Church Buildings Council, London

Collection of early photographs of the churches, derived from various sources (amassed by the Council for the Care of Churches).

## English Heritage, Swindon

The National Monuments Record has many early views of the churches, especially the tower of St Peter's. It also holds the record photographs of St Peter's taken by the RCHME in 1972, when the church was declared redundant. Department of the Environment and English Heritage correspondence and works files relating to St Peter's, including photographs.

## English Heritage, York

Holds the site archive derived from the archaeological programme (1978–2005), as well as current records relating to works by EH at St Peter's.

The EH stores hold all the archaeological material from the site, together with furnishings not currently in use at the church. The study collection of excavated human remains is housed in a purpose-built ossuary within the former organ chamber at St Peter's church.

## Lambeth Palace Library, London

Files of the Incorporated Church Building Society relating to a grant towards the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Checked 2009.

restoration of the church in 1858–59.

#### Lincolnshire Archives, Lincoln

A very large quantity of material relating to Barton and its churches, dispersed through various collections. These include civil and diocesan records, and those deposited by Barton Parochial Church Council. Privately deposited collections include the extensive notes by J.H. Loft and material on the churches derived from the Varah family. The Archives house the only accessible set of copies of *Barton Parish Magazine*.

#### Lincoln Public Library, Lincoln

Various pamphlets and ephemera; also the original drawings of the churches by C. Nattes (1796).

#### North Lincolnshire Archives Office, Grimsby

Civil records relating to Barton; also some private papers and ephemera.

#### North Lincolnshire Museum Service, Scunthorpe

Important scrapbook of drawings, cuttings and photographs relating to Barton, assembled by H.W. Ball in the nineteenth century.

The Sites and Monuments Record for North Lincolnshire is also based in Scunthorpe Museum, and its files contain much material relating to Barton.

Scunthorpe Museum holds various artefacts derived from both the churches, including the Georgian Royal Arms, armour, a collecting shoe, a benefaction board, and excavation finds from St Mary's. Some items are displayed in Baysgarth Museum, Barton.